

مؤسسة الباحثين السودانيين

المرشد إلى المنح الدراسية

Sudanese Researchers Scholarships Guide

تنسيق ومراجعة النسخة الثانية:

شهد الباسم عبدالرحيم

سارة عمر خضر

April 2024

: كتابة النص م .أحمد محجوب د .علاء الدين الزبير أ .رانيا فضل الله الطيب بروف سعاد بدري د .هشام موسى م .تامر سليمان أ .إيناس السر مبارك

: المراجعة

د .محمد الحاج د .أنور دفع الله م .أنس محمد م .أحمد إبراهيم م .أحمد محجوب م .تامر سليمان د .محمد صبرى الإهداء

إلى ابنائنا وبناتنا زملائنا وزميلاتنا طلاب وطالبات سوداننا العظيم

الشكر والتقدير

تشكر إدارة الباحثين السودانيين كل من ساهم في كتابه المرشد إلى المنح الدراسية من طلاب وطالبات هذا الوطن العظيم من المتحصلين على منح دراسية سابقة والذين سطروا لنا معلوماتهم القيمة وتجربتهم العلمية العظيمة.

Table of Contents

المقدمة	6
مقدمة عن المنح الدراسية وأنواعها	7
تعريف المنحة الدراسية	7
أنواع المنح الدراسية	8
التصنيف العالمي للجامعات	9
أنواع التصنيفات الجامعية	9
تصنيف كيو إس لأفضل الجامعات	9
تصنيف مؤسسة التايمز	10
تصنيف شنغهاي أو التصنيف الأكاديمي	11
منهجية عامة لاختيار الجامعة المناسبة	12
متطلبات القبول للجامعات	13
امتحان الايلتس	13
امتحان التوفل	13
GRE امتحان المقدرات	15
الاستعداد للتقديم للجامعة	17
Personal statement	18
How to write a personal statement?	19
What is personal statement writing structure?	19
How to write a cover letter for a scholarship?	20
Example of a cover letter	23
Motivation Letter	25
Example of a motivation letter	28
Academic Scholarships for Sudanese	38
Merit scholarship (Sweden)	38
Merit scholarship (Italy)	42
Merit scholarship (Germany(46
Merit scholarship (Turkey)	50
Merit scholarship (China)	54
Merit scholarship (Republic of South Korea)	60
Merit scholarship (India)	63
Merit scholarship (Qatar) (1)	66

Merit scholarship (Qatar) (2)	69
Merit scholarship (Spain)	73
Merit scholarship (Canada)	77
Merit Scholarship (Jordan)	80
Merit scholarship (Nigeria)	84
Government scholarship (United Kingdom)	87
PhD studentship (Norway)	91
AIMS Scholarship (Tanzania)	94
Australian government (Federal register of legislation) (Australia)	97
Academic Scholarships for Sudanese (Indonesia)	99
FUNCAMP (Postdoctorate Fellowship) (Brazil)	102
Part-time research positions (Qatar)	104
Scholarships summary	108
عناوين الملفات الإرشادية السابقة لمجموعة الباحثين السودانيين	112
استبيان حول المرشد إلى المنح الدراسية	113

المقدمة

الحمد لله رب العالمين والصلاة والسلام على نبينا محمد وعلى آله وصحبه وسلم تسليما كثيراً... وبعد

يُسعدنا في مؤسسة الباحثين السودانيين أن نُقدم لكم النسخة الثانية من "المرشد إلى المنح الدراسية" ، وهو إصدارٌ مُستحدثٌ يهدف إلى مساعدة الباحثين والطلاب السودانيين في رحلة نيل المنح الدراسية وتحقيق أحلامهم الأكاديمية. تأتي هذه النسخة بعد النجاح الكبير الذي حققته النسخة الأولى، بفضل جهود مباركة من فريق عملٍ مبدعٍ ضمّ كتّاباً ومحرّرين بذلوا قصارى جهدهم لتقديم معلوماتٍ غنيةٍ وواضحةٍ عن المنح الدراسية المتاحة.

نودّ أن نُعرب عن خالص شكرنا وتقديرنا لجميع من ساهم في إنجاز النسخة الأولى من هذا المرشد، وخاصّةً أ. إيناس السر التي بذلت جهداً استثنائياً في قيادة فريق العمل لأول نسخة وتنسيقها. لقد كان عملها أساساً متيناً بناه عليه فريقنا العمل في النسخة الثانية.

ما الجديد في النسخة الثانية؟

- تضمّن النسخة الثانية من المرشد إلى المنح الدراسية العديد من التحديثات والإضافات الجديدة، منها:
- تحديث معلومات المنح الدراسية: تم تحديث جميع معلومات المنح الدراسية لتشمل آخر التطورات والمتطلبات.
- إضافة منح دراسية جديدة: تم إضافة العديد من المنح الدراسية الجديدة التي لم تكن مُدرجةً في النسخة الأولى.
- توسيع نطاق المحتوى: تمّ توسيع نطاق المحتوى ليشمل معلوماتٍ إضّافيةً حول عمليةً التقديم للمنح الدراسية، ومهارات كتابة طلبات المنح، ونصائح لتحسين فرص الحصول على المنحة.
 - تحسين التصميم: تمّ تقسيم المرشد لجعله أكثر سهولةً في الاستخدام والقراءة.

هدفنا:

نسعى في مؤسسة الباحثين السودانيين إلى جعل "المرشد إلى المنح الدراسية" أداةً أساسيةً لجميع الباحثين والطلاب السودانيين الذين يطمحون إلى مواصلة تعليمهم العالي في الخارج، في ظل الظروف التي تمر بها البلاد. آملين أن تُساعدكم هذه النسخة المُحدّثة في تحقيق أحلامكم الأكاديمية والوصول إلى أهدافكم المهنية. رعى الله البلاد والعباد.

مع خالص التقدير،

سارة عمر خضر شهد الباسم عبدالرحيم

فريق عمل مؤسسة الباحثين السودانيين ٢٥/يونيو/٢٤

الباب الأول:

مقدمة عن المنح الدراسية وأنواعها

مقدمة عن المنح الدراسية وأنواعها

تعريف المنحة الدراسية

المنحة الدراسية هي دعم مادي لتغطية رسوم الدراسة والمعيشة تقدمه حكومات و جامعات الدول من مختلف أنحاء العالم للطلاب المتفوقين أكاديميا و تقدم هذه المنح للمراحل والدرجات الدراسية المختلفة والتي يمكن تقسيمها على النحو التالي:

- 1- درجة البكالوريوس (Bachelor)
 - 2- درجة الماجستير (Master)
- 3- درجة الدكتوراة (Doctorate)

4- منح بحوث ما بعد الدكتوراة (Post-doctoral)

يمكن تقسيم المنح الدراسية المقدمة للطلاب إلى نوعين من المنح:

*منح دراسية كاملة (Full Scholarship/Fully Funded

تتكفل هذه المنحة بتغطية رسوم الدراسة والمعيشة و التأمين الصحي و التنقل بين بلد الإقامة وبلد الدراسة و قد تغطي التكاليف المعيشية لأسرة الطالب في حالة كان متزوج و يصطحب أسرته معه.

*منح دراسية جزئية)) Partial Scholarship/Partially Funded

تغطي هذه المنحة الرسوم الدراسية فقط ولا تتكفل بتغطية تكاليف معيشة الطالب و قد تغطي جزء من الرسوم و يتكفل الطالب ببقية مصاريفه من مصادره الخاصة أو عن طريق العمل في الجامعة كمساعد باحث أو مساعد تدريس أو أي عمل آخر بما يتوافق مع قوانين وأنظمة الجامعة ودولة الدراسة.

و للاطلاع أكثر ننصح بمراجعة هذا المقال من خلال الرابط<u>https://lookinmena.com /ماذا-تعني-منحة-</u> دراسية/

أنواع المنح الدراسية

يمكن تقسيم المنح الدراسية التي تقدم للطلاب الدوليين (الطلاب من جنسيات دول أخرى الذين لا يحملون جنسية الدولة التي تقدم المنحة) إلى الأنواع التالية:

1- منح الاستحقاق أو الجدارة الأكاديمية: تمنح للطلاب المتفوقين أكاديمياً و قد تمنح أيضاً للطلاب الموهويين و الذين يشاركون في الأنشطة التطوعية أو المجتمعية و غيرها.

2- منح التدريس/ البحث: هي منح تشترط على المتحصل عليها المساعدة في التدريس أو إجراء بحوث مرتبطة بمشروع معين ممول من جهة حكومية أو خاصة وغالبا تتطلب هذه المنحة التواصل المباشر مع المشرف والحصول على موافقته قبل تقديم الطلب.

3- منح بحسب الاحتياج المادي: يعتمد هذا النوع من المنح على وضع الطالب المادي ويتم الاختيار حسب معايير معينة تعتمد على المستوى المعيشي المرتبط بدخل الطالب بالإضافة لحد أدنى محدد من درجاته الأكاديمية. وغالبا تكون هذه المنح موجهة للدول النامية والفقيرة.

4- منح المؤسسات التعليمية: تشمل مساعدات مالية للطلاب تقدمها جهات مانحة تتعاون مع المؤسسة التعليمية وقد تكون موجهة لبرامج معينة مثلاً منحة للهندسة أو منحة الطب أو التمريض.

-5 منح المرأة: هي منح مخصصة لدعم النساء و لها شروط تحددها الجهة المانحة.

6- منح الموهوبين: تقدم هذه المنحة للطلاب ذوي المهارات الخاصة أو المواهب الفنية وعادة ترتبط بمجال الدراسة المتوفرة فيه المنحة.

7- منح الرياضيين: هذا النوع من المنح يعتبر أقل نشاطا. وتقدم هذه المنح وفق معايير اختيار صارمة للفرق الرياضية في الجامعة.

التصنيف العالمي للجامعات

مقدمة

التصنيف العالمي للجامعات (World University Ranking) هو مقياس سنوي تصدره مؤسسات متخصصة كمقياس لجودة التعليم العالي والبحث العلمي لمختلف جامعات العالم، وتضع هذه الجهات المتخصصة معايير محددة على أساسها يقوم التقييم وهذه المعايير تختلف من جهة إلى أخرى حسب ما تعتبره الجهة صاحبة التصنيف أكثر أهمية في عملية التقييم. ويعتمد التقييم على إعطاء نسب مئوية معينة لكل معيار بحيث يكون مجموع المعايير الكلي 100% وفي عملية التقييم تعطى الجامعة المعينة درجات معينة لكل معيار و النتيجة الكلية تكون بحاصل جمع النتائج المفردة.

أنواع التصنيفات الجامعية

فيما يلي ثلاثة من أشهر التصنيفات العالمية والتي تجد موثوقية و قبول في الوسط الأكاديمي والبحثي:

تصنيف كيو إس لأفضل الجامعات

https://www.topuniversities.com/university-rankings

هو تصنيفٌ سنوي تقوم به مؤسسة كواكواريلي سايموندز البريطانية Quacquarelli Symonds (Qs))، ويهدف إلى رفع مستوى المعايير العالمية للجامعات عن طريق تقييم أكثر من 1000 جامعة على مستوى العالم وفقًا للمعايير التالية:

- السمعة الأكاديمية للجامعة 40%: تعني استطلاع آراء الخبراء والأكاديميين في الجامعات من مختلف أنحاء العالم حول تلك الجامعة.
- سمعة الجامعة لدى المشغلين وأصحاب العمل 10%: تعني ثقة أصحاب العمل بالجامعة ومدى تفضيلهم لتوظيف خريجيها.
 - نسبة أعضاء هيئة التدريس إلى الطلاب ونسبته 20%.
 - نسبة الاستشهاد العلمى والأبحاث الصادرة عن الجامعة نسبته 20%.

نسبة أعضاء هيئة التدريس والطلاب الدوليين بالجامعة ونسبته 10%.

تصنيف مؤسسة التايمز

https://www.timeshighereducation.com/world-university-rankings

- وهو تصنيفٌ سنوي تقوم به مؤسسة التايمز البريطانية للتعليم العالي (Times Higher Education)
 و يغطي ما يقارب 1500 جامعة على مستوى العالم، حيثُ وضعت شروطًا تُمكن الجامعات ذات
 الطابع البحثي دُخول التصنيف اعتمادا على المعايير التالية:
 - التدريس أو البيئة التعليمية 30%: ويتناول واقع البيئة الجامعية من خلال:
- شهرة الجامعة عبر استطلاعات تجريها شركة تومسون رويترز يشارك فيها علماء وباحثون من كل أنحاء العالم.
 - نسبة درجات الدكتوراه إلى البكالوريوس.
 - نسبة أعضاء هيئة التدريس إلى الطلاب.
 - عدد درجات الدكتوراه الممنوحة من قبل الجامعة.
 - دخل وميزانية الجامعة.
 - البحث الأكاديمي 30%: ويتم تقييمه وفقا للآتي:
 - السمعة الأكاديمية بين الجامعات العالمية من خلال اجراء استطلاعات الرأي.
 - دخل الجامعة من البحث.
- الإنتاجية البحثية؛ ويأخذ بالاعتبار عدد الأبحاث العلمية المنشورة من قبل أعضاء هيئة التدريس
 الإنتاجية في قاعدة بيانات المجلات و الأبحاث العلمية Scopus الصادرة عن شركة إلسفير Elsevier.
- الاستشهاد أو الاقتباس العلمي 30%: يتناول مدى تأثير الأبحاث التي تصدر عن الجامعة من خلال متوسط عدد مرات الاستشهاد (Citations) بها من قبل الباحثين حول العالم.

- النظرة الدولية للجامعة 7.5%: يركز على مدى التنوع البشري والتعاون الدولي للجامعة؛ أي نسبة الطلاب وأعضاء هيئة التدريس الدوليين إلى نظرائهم المحليين، كذلك نسبة وجود باحثين دوليين من خارج الجامعة ضمن الأبحاث المنشورة من قبل للجامعة.
- الدخل من القطاع الصناعي 2.5%: ويقصد به العائد الناتج عن تعاون الجامعة مع القطاع الصناعي من خلال أنشطة نقل المعرفة مثل تقديم الابتكارات والاختراعات.

https://www.timeshighereducation.com/world-university-rankings/worlduniversity-rankings-2020-methodology#survey-answer

تصنيف شنغهاي أو التصنيف الأكاديمي

http://www.shanghairanking.com/index.html

- جامعة جياو تونغ شنغهاي في الصين (Shanghai Jiao Tong University)، ومنذ العام 2009 بات يصدر من مؤسسة إستشارات شنغهاي رانكينج (Shanghai Ranking Consultancy) و هي منظمة مستقلة تُعني بجمع و تحليل المعلومات المتعلقة بالتعليم العالي. على الرغم من أن الهدف الأولي لهذا التصنيف هو مقارنة الجامعات الصينية مع نظيراتها في العالم إلا أنه توسع ليشمل تقييم 1800 جامعة حول العالم بشرط امتلاكها المؤهلات الأولية للمنافسة، ومن ثم يصدر قائمة بأفضل 1000 جامعة معتمدًا على المعاير العالم 1000 بات عدمدًا على المعاير التالية:
- جودة التعليم 10%: يأخذ بالاعتبار عدد خريجي الجامعة الحاصلين على جوائز أو ميداليات عالمية في مختلف التخصصات.
- جودة أعضاء هيئة التدريس 40%: يشير إلى عدد أعضاء هيئة التدريس في الجامعة الحاصلين على
 جائزة نوبل أو ميداليات عالمية في مختلف التخصصات، وكثرة الاستشهاد بأبحاثهم المنشورة في
 المجلات والدوريات العالمية.
- مخرجات البحث 40%: يركز على عدد الأبحاث المنشورة في دليل الاقتباس العلمي الموسع (SCIE)
 ودليل اقتباس العلوم الاجتماعية (SSCI) و اللذان يصدران ضمن قاعدة بيانات المجلات و الأبحاث
 العلمية ISI المملوكة لمؤسسة .Clarivate Analytics

الأداء الأكاديمي بالنسبة لحجم الجامعة 10%: يقوم بحساب نسبة الدرجات التي حصلت عليها
 الجامعة في المعايير أعلاه إلى عدد أعضاء هيئة التدريس بالجامعة.

منهجية عامة لاختيار الجامعة المناسبة

نتيجة للتباين في المعايير التي تعتمد عليها هذه التصنيفات وبالتالي اختلاف المراكز التي تحتلها الجامعات في كل تصنيف، نجد أن الجامعة الواحدة قد تحرز ترتيبا متقدماً في أحد التصنيفات ومتأخراً أو متوسطاً في التصنيفات الأخرى. لكن هذا الاختلاف والتباين هو في الحقيقة نقطة إيجابية وليست سلبية؛ إذ أنه يوفر قدر كبير ومتنوع من المعلومات عن المستوى الأكاديمي للجامعات وتخصصاتها وإنتاجها البحثي وكفاءة طاقمها التدريسي بل و حتى مدي التنوع الطلابي و الثقافي لديها. فمثلاً لو كان الطالب يبحث عن الجامعات ذات المستوى الأكاديمي/البحثي المتميز فقط بغض النظر عن العوامل الأخر فالأفضل له أن ينظر في تصنيف شنغهاي دولي و تنوع بشري عالي بين طلابها و اساتذتها فالأفضل له أن ينظر في تصنيف شنعهاي دولي و تنوع بشري عالي بين طلابها و اساتذتها فالأفضل له النظر في تصنيف العابع كان الطالب يبحث عن جامعة ذات شهرة واسعة بين نظيراتها ويتمتع خريجيها بسمعة جيدة في سوق العمل فيمكنه النظر في تصنيف كيو إس (QS Ranking).

تتيح كل هذه التصنيفات إمكانية البحث المخصص من خلال مواقعها الإلكترونية؛ بمعني أنه يمكنك البحث عن ترتيب الجامعة في بلد أو منطقة معينة مقارنة مع الجامعات الأخرى في نفس البلد أو المنطقة، كما يمكنك البحث عن ترتيب الجامعة وفقاً لمعيار معين كجودة التدريس أو المنظور الدولي مثلاً. ايضاً يمكن البحث عن ترتيب الجامعة وفقاً لمجال معين (كالهندسة و التكنولوجيا بصفة عامة، الطب و العلوم الصحية، علوم الكمبيوتر و تكنولوجيا المعلومات، إلخ) أو تخصص محدد (كالهندسة المدنية او الميكانيكية، طب الأسنان، القانون، إدارة الأعمال،...إلخ)، مما يسهل عملية البحث و تضييلات الجامعة المناسبة بل و حتى المفاضلة بين جامعتين أو اكثر بصورة منطقية و حيادية حسب رغبات و تفضيلات الطالب و النتائج التي يرجوها من دراسته.

بعد القيام بتحديد الجامعة بناءاً على ما سبق ذكره، يمكن للطالب أن يدخل إلى الموقع الإلكتروني للجامعة (غالبا موجود ضمن البيانات المصاحبة للجامعة في موقع التصنيف) ويتصفح المعلومات الموجودة فيه لمعرفة أنواع المنح و الدعم المالي المتاح، و القيام بتصفح ملفات اعضاء هيئة التدريس و الباحثين بالجامعة لأخذ فكرة عامة عن مؤهلاتهم و مجالاتهم البحثية و تحديد مدى التناسب مع المجال الذي يرغب الطالب في دراسته.



متطلبات القبول للجامعات

• Exams

• Essays

متطلبات القبول للجامعات

أغلب الجامعات تشترط اجتياز امتحان اللغة الإنجليزية الآيلتس IELTS أو الـ TOEFL كشرط أساسي في عملية القبول للجامعة خاصة إذا كانت الجامعة تعتمد على اللغة الإنجليزية كلغة اساسية في الدراسة ، كما أن البعض يشترط أيضا اجتياز امتحان القدرات GRE .

امتحان الايلتس

بشكل عام هناك نوعان من الامتحان : أكاديمي و عام والغرض من الامتحان تحديد مستوى اللغة الإنجليزية بدقة للممتحن للجهة الطالبة للامتحان ، و تلك الشهادة معتمدة عالمياً لدى كبريات الجامعات والمؤسسات الأكاديمية . حيث يمثل الشق الأكاديمي للامتحان إحدى متطلبات القبول لتلك الجامعات سواءً كان التقديم . عن طريق منحة أو تقديم مسبق الدفع

* لمزيد من المعلومات عن امتحان الآيلتس الأكاديمي الرجاء الاطلاع على المرشد حول الايلتس (محمد أحمد حسين- هشام موسى) من خلال الرابط:

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1LDesyrOGg-PTQDLI6xYKmYMNP02vU5s4/view?fbclid=IwAR2pWh_osjEEMTHUk-zEpgMI1_xSBd3FNbzioTLraqmkygldPXZHIXkWRs

امتحان التوفل

امتحان التوفل هو اختبار للغة الإنجليزية للأشخاص الذين يستعملون اللغة الإنجليزية كلغة ثانيه لقياس مستواهم باللغة الإنجليزية ويستخدم بشكل رئيسي في الغالبية العظمي من الجامعات والكليات الأمريكية وجامعات كثيرة حول العالم كاختبار معتمد وجزء مهم من متطلبات القبول والتسجيل والدراسة بتلك المؤسسات الدراسية .يتم إعداد اختبار توفل من قبل منظمة ETS الأمريكية.

يوجد نوعان من اختبار التوفل:

1- الامتحان الورقى للتوفل TOEFL PBT

2- الامتحان عن طريق الإنترنت TOEFL IBT

يختلف اختبار التوفل الورقي عن الاختبار عبر الإنترنت اختلافًا كبيرًا في مدة الاختبار وعلامات الاختبار درجة الصعوبة وأقسام الاختبار يمكن تلخيصها في الآتي :

الامتحان عن طريق الإنترنت	الامتحان الورقي للتوفل TOEFL PBT	المقياس
TOEFL IBT		
4 ساعات ونصف	3 ساعات ونصف	المدة
120	677	العلامات
استخدام الحاسوب	ورقي	درجة
		الصعوبة
أربعة أقسام تشمل القراءة،	ثلاثة أقسام: القراءة، القواعد، والاستماع، بالإضافة إلى قسم	الأقسام
الاستماع، التحدّث والكتابة	رابع منفصل خاصّ بكتابة مقالة.	

تختلف الرسوم باختلاف البلد في السودان يمكن التسجيل للتوفل في مدرسة الخرطوم الأمريكية ورسوم التسجيل تكلف 205 دولارا أمريكيا.

* لمزيد من المعلومات عن التسجيل للامتحان في السودان الرجاء زيارة موقع المدرسة على الرابط التالي :

https://www.krtams.org/welcome/index.php/counseling/us-standardizedtests/toefl-exam.html * أما اذا كنت تقيم خارج السودان فيمكنك التسجيل على رابط موقع ETS

https://www.ets.org/toefl/

GRE امتحان المقدرات

امتحان ال GRE أو Graduate Record Examination هو امتحان عالمي موحد لتقييم المقدرات في اللغة الإنجليزية، ومهارات التحليل الكمي لتحصيل القبول في مرحلة الدراسات العليا في الولايات المتحدة أو كندا (بصورة أساسية). يتم تنظيم ووضع الامتحان من قبل مؤسسة (ETS (Educational Testing Service، و هي ايضا الجهة التي تتولى عملية التسجيل للامتحان عبر موقعها في الانترنت.

يتكون الامتحان من ٣ أقسام:

- 1. قسم مهارات اللغة الإنجليزية العامة Verbal Reasoning: ويشمل المفردات، القراءة والتحليل
- قسم الرياضيات Quantitative section ويشمل مهارات الرياضيات في المرحلة الثانوية (ما قبل الجامعة)
 - 3. قسم للكتابة Analytical Writing ويشمل مهارات كتابة المقالات بالإنجليزية

يكون تقييم القسمين الأول والثاني عبر اختيار الإجابة الصحيحة من عدة خيارات متاحة، و لأن الامتحان رقمي، فإن الطالب يعرف نتيجته لهذين القسمين بعد الامتحان مباشرة. مقياس الدرجات للقسمين الأولين هو من ١٣٠ إلى ١٧٠. أما القسم الثالث فهو مقال، ولذلك لا تظهر نتيجته إلا بعد أسبوعين تقريبا وهي في مقياس من ١-٦. هذا الامتحان رقمي ويتم عبر الانترنت في مراكز اختبارات محددة في شتى دول العالم بما فيها السودان، ولكن في السودان يتم الامتحان بصورة ورقية و يكون التسجيل عبر موقع مدرسة الخرطوم

. <u>http://www.krtams.org/welcome/ Kas@krtams.org</u> الامتحان الرسمي /<u>https://www.ets.org/gre/revised_general/register/your_ets_account</u> يحتوي الموقع ايضا على: شروط وآلية التقديم، معلومات تفصيلية عن الامتحان ومكوناته، آلية وضع الدرجات و غيرها من المعلومات الهامة، فلذلك لابد لك من الرجوع للموقع الرسمي. في حال أخذ الامتحان عبر الكومبيوتر في مركز اختبار معتمد، فيمكن للطالب بعد الفراغ من الامتحان ورؤية نتيجته لأول قسمين إرسال نتائجه مباشرة لأى جامعة في العالم باستعمال رمز محدد (و هذا إجراء مهم تطلبه كل الجامعات). هنا أيضا بعض التوجيهات الهامة بخصوص هذا الامتحان:

- كل ما يتعلق بهذا الامتحان، بما في ذلك كيفية التسجيل وحجز موعد الامتحان، موجود في الموقع الرسمى: <u>https://www.ets.org/gre</u>
- هذا الامتحان هو مطلوب في الأساس للتخصصات العلمية مثل الهندسة، ولذا تركز بعض الجامعات
 التى تطلبه على نتائج قسم الرياضيات فقط
- هذا الامتحان ليس مطلوبا لكل الجامعات في الولايات المتحدة وكندا، ولذا، لابد للطالب من التحقق من شروط كل جامعة على حدة.
- بعض الجامعات في الدول الخليجية تتطلب هذا الامتحان كشرط أساسي للقبول في مرحلة الدكتوراة، ويكون تركيزهم غالبا على قسم الرياضيات، وتعد درجة ١٧٠/١٦٠ فما فوق درجة جيدة جدا لهذا القسم
- الGRE ليس صعبا، ولكن يحتاج لاستعداد جيد وعادة ما تكون فترة أسبوعين إلى ثلاثة أسابيع من الاستعداد الجاد كافية لتحصيل درجة عالية. هنالك الكثير من المراجع في الانترنت والامتحانات التجريبية التي يمكن حلها للاستعداد، كما توفر مؤسسة ETS أيضا امتحانات تجريبية مجانا لكل طالب يسجل عبر الموقع ويدفع رسوم الاختبار (هي حاليا ٢٠٥ دولار أمريكي)
 - مقياس درجات القسمين الأولين يبدأ من ١٣٠، فبالتالى تعد ١٣٠ نتيجة موازية لصفر!
- الامتحان محدد بزمن معين لكل قسم والأقسام الثلاثة موضوعة بترتيب معين و الفترة الزمنية الكلية هي تقريبا ٣ ساعات و ٤٥ دقيقة، مع العلم أنه يحق للطالب تجاوز قسم كامل، و في هذه الحالة سيتحصل على نتيجة صفر في ذلك القسم.

*هذا الرابط يحتوي على إجابات بعض الأسئلة الشائعة عن الامتحان: https://www.ets.org/gre/revised general/faq

الاستعداد للتقديم للجامعة

بصورة عامة، يتطلب التقديم لأي جامعة إعداد مجموعة من المستندات والخطابات كجزء من متطلبات القبول للدراسة أو المنح أيضا. وتشمل هذه المستندات والخطابات الآتي: جواز السفر، شهادات المرحلة الثانوية، شهادات البكالوريوس (في حال التقديم للدراسات العليا)، خطاب التعريف الشخصي، خطابات التوصية من أساتذة جامعيين أو مراجع مهنية، وغيرها من الخطابات أو المستندات التي تختلف من جامعة لأخرى، ولذا لابد من الرجوع دائما لموقع الجامعة الرسمي

وفيما يلي نبذة عن أبرز الخطابات وكيفية اعدادها، و نظرا لأن أغلب الجامعات حول العالم تعتمد اللغة الإنجليزية لغة رسمية للتدريس، فإن النماذج المذكورة هنا مكتوبة بالإنجليزية.

تنبيه: النماذج المذكورة في هذا القسم هي للتوضيح فقط ولا يجوز استعمالها كما هي في التقديم لأي جامعة!

Personal statement

What is a personal statement? *

It's a structured essay that allows you to present a convincing snapshot of you and why you aspire to be a (accountant, doctor, engineer, lawyer, pilot, translator, etc.). Utilize it to say what other aspirants cannot say, while still maintaining a professional tone. This "**personal statement**" comprises carefully selected information that is modeled into an "original/authentic story" that reveals one's motivation to become in an intended position.

- Personal statement should include a brief, small, bite-sized representation overview of who you are, your strengths and any work experience and/or education you've got as a professional, and what you have to offer in terms of experience and ambition.
- Be sure to include skills you've gained, such as time management, customer service, teamwork, computer skills etc.

Why it is important?

Because it acts as the gateway between your application and admittance. If all grades are equal and everyone has similar extra-curricular interests, the **personal statement** will make you noticeable. It gives your **personal reasons** and the journey that has motivated you to pursue the field/study that you are applying for.

For instance, if you don't have any practical work experience, you can always touch on your academic accomplishments or transferable skills gleaned over the years.

How to write a personal statement?

Before start writing your personal statement, make sure it is about to answer the following questions:

- Why do this position/ job/ role interest you?
- Why are you suited to this position/ job/ role?
- Do you have any previous jobs or training that relate to this line of work?
- Have you taken part in any projects that help demonstrate your capabilities?
- What specialist skills do you have that make you an ideal candidate?

What is personal statement writing structure?

Please see the Motivational letter structure.

• Examples of Personal Statements Prepared by the Admissions Office University of

Toronto Faculty of Law.

https://www.law.utoronto.ca/documents/JD/UofT_Law_Personal_Statements ______Examples.pdf

How to write a cover letter for a scholarship?

What Is a Cover Letter?

It's simply a letter you write to the scholarship committee. In the letter, you should explain what makes you a great candidate for the award. You should also talk about how the scholarship will help you reach your educational and career goals.

The scholarship committee wants to invest their resources in the most fitting applicants, so, make them see the reasons why they should invest in you.

Why a Cover Letter?

There are always minimum requirements applicants must satisfy. The requirements can include but not limited to academic records, language test scores, age, a list of extracurricular activities, etc. However, many scholarship committees look for something else. They look at students who have overcome struggles, students who are leaders in their community, and students who have unique hobbies or achievements. Your cover letter is the place to highlight your uniqueness.

Note that not every scholarship application requires applicants to submit a cover letter, but when they ask, it's a great idea to submit a great one. Use the opportunity to think about how you can make yourself stand out from other applicants.

What Should Your Cover Letter Accomplish?

Your cover letter should do the following:

- 1. Highlight your strengths: Why do your strengths make you a good match for the scholarship?
- 2. Express what your plans are for the future: How will this particular scholarship help get you there?

3. Convey a clear structure: Your cover letter should flow in a clear and concise manner.

How Should You Organize Your Cover Letter?

The letter should be around 1-2 pages and it is not recommended to go over that. Make the font 12 or 14 and use double spacing to make it easy to read. A typical cover letter consists of the following:

1. The header

The header is organized as the following:

Name of Applicant

Address of Applicant

City, State, Zip Code

DATE

Name of Head of Scholarship Committee (If available)

Name of Scholarship or Institution

Address of Institution

City, State, Zip Code

1. Subject line

Provide a relevant subject title, e.g.; "Application for [NAME of SCHOLARSHIP] cover letter"

1. Introductory paragraph

Start with "Dear Sir., Madam., Mr., etc..." in a separate line, then give a short introductory statement and purpose for writing.

1. Second Paragraph

This paragraph should talk and focus on the educational and career goals of the applicant. It is appropriate to discuss interests and the chosen field of study.

5. Third Paragraph

This paragraph needs to focus on strengths. If there are any extracurricular activities or if this person has done any community or voluntary work, it should be stated here. Any academic awards or achievements also need to be listed in this paragraph.

6. Final paragraph

Finally, tell them confidently you are capable enough to complete the program successfully. do not forget to close with thank you and some words of appreciation.

7. Signature

End the letter with:

Sincerely,

Signature of Applicant

Printed Name of Applicant

If the letter is being sent via email the subject line should have your full name followed by Application for [NAME of SCHOLARSHIP]. End the email with *best regards*, your *first and last name* and your *phone number*.

Make sure you spell check your cover letter and proofread it several times. A cover letter with grammar mistakes will not make you look like a professional and welleducated student.

Armando Gutierrez 4215 Duval St Austin, TX, 78751 (512) 522-6167 gutarmando@gmail.com

10/11/2019

Example of a cover letter

Adrian Clark

ULN Coordinator

2304 Whitis Ave

Austin, TX, 78712

Dear Mr. Clark,

Having been accepted to UT Austin for the 2019 fall term to pursue a Bachelor's in Architecture, I am writing to express my desire to participate in the University Leadership Scholarship Program. For as long as I can remember, I've had a strong passion for architecture, my favorite Texas landmark being the pink granite edifice of the State Capitol. I'm particularly excited by the opportunity to join a network of leaders who help to maintain UT Austin's reputation as a world-leading public research university.

My parents came to Texas as immigrants and have worked tirelessly in low paid jobs to provide for our family. If I am accepted to the program, I would be the first member

of my family to benefit from a college education. My goal is to use my education to give back to the community. I want to specialize in designing affordable and environmentally sustainable housing. My passion for this field was inspired by my winning virtual city design for the National Future City competition, and I am all too aware of the impact of high housing costs and environmental destruction on underprivileged communities.

Servant leadership is the philosophy I intend to follow as a program participant and alumni. I want society to benefit from my education and UT Austin to gain prestige as an institution providing innovation for the greater good. This scholarship would enable me to achieve these aims. In fact, my high school principal is an alumnus of the program. She has been a huge inspiration to me and many others, and I hope to follow her example should I be accepted.

Please get in touch to arrange a meeting with me. I'd love to tell you more about my upbringing and my desire to give back to my community through my further education.

Best Regards, Armando Gutierrez

P.S. I'd also love to discuss how my experience in volunteer mentoring and academic coaching of younger students could contribute to the program's leadership aims.

Motivation Letter

What is a Motivational Letter? *

It is also called "Personal Statement". It is a one-page letter in which you have to describe your eligibility for a certain position, like a job, internship, scholarship, university student or volunteer.

It is a way for boosting your curriculum vitae (CV), put on support of what is mentioned in it and a maximizing chance to be considered as a qualified candidate.

• Note: what mentioned in your resume should not be repeated in the motivational letter.

The Structure of the Motivational Letter

Part 1

Introduction



Opening Line



Opening Line: in the opening line you should

- State the purpose of the application
- Introduce yourself

Final Line: in the final line of the introduction

- Give summary of your current state/ position
- Why are you applying?
- How the application or opportunity matches you

Model for Introduction:

Dear [Name of the Contact Person],

My name is **[Your name]** and I would like to express my interest in applying for the Doctoral program in political science at **[University Name]**. I've always dreamed of becoming a politician and helping give back to my country, and I believe that a Ph.D. in politics from **[University Name]** would set me miles ahead to reaching my goal.

Part 2

Main Body (A)

- Include your past achievements and academic performance.
- Mention your good language skills as well as can-do attitude.
- Show the interest toward the university/company
- Hint your good working experience, ethics and practical training.

Model for Main Body:

I developed my passion for Online Marketing during my internship at *[company name]*. Working in a small startup allowed me to get surface-level experience in most digital marketing channels. Now, I would like to deep-dive and gain advanced knowhow by attending the *[university name]* program in Digital Marketing

Part 3

Main Body (B)

Bring up any problems that can be solved or problem solving skills you had, which can be related to the applied scholar or study. This will make you a strong option to choose you.

- Proactivity and challenges, which make you a strong candidate.
- Matching and understanding the perspective of the study like (you experiences & subject)

Part 4

The Closing

A conclusion/ final statement; it is very important. You must include valid points within the procedural process; for example: if an interview is mentioned in the admission, you should ask for an interview.

Model of a closing :

- 1. I believe I'd be a good fit for the program because of (.....)
- 2. Thank you for reviewing my motivation letter (......)
- 3. I gladly await your response (.....)

Remember to enclose your personal contact information as the example below:

Best Regards,

Insert Name (.....)

Address, contact information (.....)

Important points, you keep on mind :

- → You must know what ad where you are applying to
- → You share the organization's values. Be specific
- → Read the program requirements carefully in the scholarship website/ company website
- → Be clear by stating your passion and showing your intelligence interest to be chosen
- → Do not lie! this will reflect in your case/ form

References

ما رأيك في الدليل؟ لطفا استخدم الاستطلاع || تريد اضافة معلومة؟ استخدم الاستمارة هنا: استمارة المنح الدراسية ||

Novoresume.com, Edunation.co, YouTube channel: The student room.

Example of a motivation letter

1-Motivation letter for a Master's in Computer Science

Dear sir/madam,

First of all, let me introduce myself, I am [name] and recently I have been working in Ethio Telecom as a Network Engineer. I have attended my B.Sc. degree in Computer Science and Engineering (Software Engineering Stream) from [university name].

The undergraduate curriculum in Computer Science and Engineering at institute of technology, [university name]; Ethiopia introduces me to a wide variety of engineering subjects. Various courses like Artificial Intelligence (Robotics), Programming Languages, Electronics I&II, Software Engineering, System Programming, Microprocessor, Interfacing & Assembly, Algorithm Analysis and Design, Digital Signal Processing, Network and System Security, Digital system, Algorithm analysis and design, Computer graphics and multimedia, Computer Simulation and Modeling provided me with a strong footing in the theoretical concept of Computer Science and Engineering.

While offering both depth and breadth across this field, these courses put into perspective the importance and relevance of Computer Science and Engineering and the application of its fundamentals to the problems faced by the real world. So, I can realize that learning and developing my knowledge of Computer Science. I will have a great contribution to society since our country begins to transfer the manual system to computerization.

I am very eager to adopt learn know new technologies. I am really enthusiastic to attend a Master of Computer Science in order to understand different Computer Science Concepts because every industry needs the concept of Computer Science. The good reputation of high-quality education standards, an extremely distinguished faculty members, and research facilities are the factors which have motivated me to choose for my M.Sc. studies the [university name].

Moreover, I feel I am responsible for making a big move in this field and this scholarship will give me a big chance to be one day someone who is remembered for his innovations. I think it is our duty as people sharing life in this world to make our future better because the future is not only ours. Our grandchildren should be proud of us one day when they look back and find how hard we worked to make the world a better place. I believe my qualification and your needs would be an excellent fit. I will be happy to provide any further information or documents if required. I look forward to your positive response. Thank you for your time and consideration.

Yours faithfully,

Written by Alexandru Pop and first published in mastersportal.com.

https://www.mastersportal.com/articles/1543/motivation-letter-example-student-applying-to-a-masters-incomputer-science.html

2-Motivation letter for a Master's in Advanced Optical Technologies

If you want to pursue a graduate degree in engineering and technology you might want to check out this example of motivation letter from a student from Ethiopia who succeeded being accepted to a Master's degree in Advanced Optical Technologies offered by a university in Germany. Get inspired and write your own personal motivation letter that will convince universities that you're the candidate they're looking for

Dear Sir/Madam,

I am very glad to apply for a Master's study in Advanced Optical Technologies (MAOT). I am from Ethiopia and I graduated from [university name], one of the top-ranked universities in the country, in Electrical and Computer Engineering (Communication) with a Bachelor of Science degree program. I was awarded a distinction honor's degree with a GPA of 3.62/4.00 and I am among the top three ranked graduates in this field of study in the year 2013. After my graduation, I have been working as an assistant lecturer for undergraduate electrical and computer engineering students in the same university and department I graduated, [university name].

A couple of reasons motivate me to apply for a Master's degree study in advanced optical technology. Firstly, when I attended my undergraduate study I came across the adventures of scientists, researchers, engineers and technologists to make the data transmission effective and easy by the use of optical technologies. I often spend most of my work time on reading and assimilating different journals, articles, papers and research topics about optics as a whole and specifically on its impact in communication. Considering the current advancements of fiber optics and laser technology application in communication, impresses me a lot and thereby motivates me to pursue my postgraduate study in optical technology and related study area. I demonstrated good understanding and grades in subjects related to optics during my B.Sc. study. Besides, I attend some public lectures and laboratory demonstrations in optics. My secondary tertiary and B.Sc. study in schools and universities where English is the medium of instruction. Besides, I scored 7 in IELTS academic module which clears my English language proficiency. Therefore, I strongly believe that my educational qualification and motive towards the subject matter makes me a suitable candidate for your program.

It is well-known that Germany is one of the best countries in Europe where there are a number of best universities. My desire to pursue my postgraduate study emanates not only from this but also from the similarities in academic organization between my country and Germany since most educational curricula in my country are created from the experience of German's. Besides, from my early age, I am highly interested to know the culture and norms of German people.

The concrete reason for my choice to take part specifically in MAOT is the in-depth training in the fundamentals of optical technology and the chance to get a highly

interdisciplinary program which brings together experts and knowledge from different related fields of Engineering, Physics, Computer Science and Medicine, unlike other universities in optical technologies. The presence of optical communication in further applications of six main topics of optical technology where two will be major makes my choice ideal. But my intention to apply in your program is not only due to the presence of the discipline but also to benefit from the scholarship. Indeed, it is true, there is no other program that meets my need like MAOT, since it provides detailed training in the basics and applications of optical technologies and has six different, currently demanding, specialization areas which include optical communication.

Generally, I believe that I fulfill all the criteria for your program and I am highly motivated on the field of optical technologies. So, I will be glad to take part in your program and I hope I will join your academy in this session to achieve my educational and future career goals.

Thank you for your time to consider my application. Hoping to hear from you soon! With best regards!

https://www.mastersportal.com/articles/2094/motivation-letter-example-studentapplying-to-a-masters-in-advanced-optical-technologies.html

Website: mastersportal.com

3- Sample statement of purpose- business management Ph.D. example:

This essay also illustrates how you need to present yourself in an all-round light, especially when you're applying for management courses. It pays to stay in touch with the prevailing ethos that schools believe in. While many of us may have had socially relevant experiences, it takes a certain savvy to highlight them while applying to schools that care.

" I am applying for admission to the Ph.D. program in Business Administration because I want a career in the research and teaching of management. In particular, I am interested in factors that affect the competitive performance of a business concern, and the manner in which changes in technology affect an organization's structure, long-term business strategy, product development, manufacturing, supply chains, distribution network, information needs and standard systems. In order to gain an appreciation of these and related issues, it is essential for me to have a strong grounding in Economics, Supply Chain Management, and issues connected with Information Technology, as well as gain a General Management perspective.

I believe that the Ph.D. program in Business Administration (with concentration in Management) would be invaluable in helping me achieve these objectives. It would enable me to channel my quantitative and conceptual skills in analyzing business issues and would open up new avenues in research. Subsequent to earning a Ph.D., I would like to apply for a faculty position at a leading university; and investigate issues concerned with technology as it affects organization strategy, structure and systems.

I believe that my background in engineering and management has prepared me for such a career. I have found research fascinating since my engineering days, where I received the highest marks in the Department for my final-year undergraduate dissertation; and was judged to have presented the best paper at a Departmental seminar. My four years of engineering education have provided me with a strong grounding in mathematics (I stood first in my department for each of the four Math papers) and the theoretical aspects of technology.

I joined ABC Business School in order to broaden my perspective and to improve my career prospects. Economics and psychology - subjects new to me - were interesting, and I enjoyed applying quantitative and conceptual skills to analyze business problems. I did very well in projects, desk research, workshops and class discussion; although academically I did not perform to my satisfaction (I finished with a GPA of 2.91, partly due to health reasons). I was voted as one of the ten most promising students in my batch, and received a national-level award for the best business school project, awarded by the Institute of Management Consultants of India. This was for a summer project, entitled "Formulation and Implementation of a Marketing Strategy for Handicrafts, a unit of the Special Person's Association".

Upon graduating from business school, I was offered a job with AZ & Co., a management consulting firm which ranks as among India's largest. This is where I learned how to apply the principles and lessons of management to real life. It was fascinating; and transformed my interest in management research into a passion. I read extensively, trying to keep myself informed about management thinking in my areas of work - structure and systems in an industry and organization, industrial marketing and strategy.

I have learnt a lot from my present job. With the rest of my team, I have analyzed markets and examined supply and distribution networks for such diverse products and industries as bulk chemicals, fresh fruit exports, toys, packaging machinery, retailing, adhesives, diamonds and pharmaceuticals. I have helped formulate entry strategies, plans for expansion and diversification, and also company business plans. As part of a team, I have carried out preliminary feasibility studies; compared technology options; suggested to the Forex Bank of India, a plan for improving the export competitiveness of India's Chemicals Sector; and studied government schemes for their efficacy. I have studied in detail the organization structure and systems for one of India's largest manufacturers of automobiles and helped in the restructuring of the company as well as the redesigning of their new systems.

These assignments have involved interaction with people at all levels of the value chain, and at organizational levels from the Chairman of a \$ 200 million firm to a packing clerk earning \$1 daily. They have given me the opportunity to interview a number of policy makers, industry analysts and economists in an effort to understand the functioning of, and important issues connected with, each of these industries.
All this has given me valuable insights into the environment in which companies operate - how they affect this environment and are affected by it. It has enabled me to observe some of the better and worse ways of running a business. Certain assignments have been thought provoking; my most recent assignment, on the redesigning of a company's structure and systems, helped me understand the necessity of good organization structures, and appreciate the significance of systems that work well. A study on the export competitiveness of India's chemicals sector brought home to me the importance of technology in determining a company's or industry's competitiveness. An assignment involving the evaluation of an air freight subsidy scheme for exporters of fresh fruits raised fundamental questions in my mind about the efficacy of subsidies in improving the competitiveness of an industrial sector, and encouraged me to look at more lasting measures instead.

The time limitation on each assignment has taught me to plan well, work systematically and keep my reports up-to-date. At the same time, having to defend my analyses and recommendations, during both internal discussions and presentations to clients, has taught me to think rigorously and creatively. Our extensive use of computers for analysis and preparation of presentations and reports has made me familiar with spreadsheet, word processing and presentation packages.

While the highly diverse nature of assignments has helped me gain a broad exposure to Indian industry, it has not been possible for me to study specific business and technology - related issues in depth. I realize that in order to be able to do so, I need a better understanding of the various facets of management; the interlinkages between different functional areas and between different business entities. Equally important, I need further training in research methodology.

I want to do a Ph.D. at the College of Business, XYZ University for many reasons. I have heard about XYZ's Ph.D. program in Business Administration from my business school professors and am impressed with the emphasis placed on technical and analytical skills, general management orientation and rigorous research methodology. The school's strengths in supply chain management and information management are commensurate with my research interests. The faculty's reputation for excellent teaching, challenging coursework and the excellent facilities are added attractions.

While the study of and research in management is my prime objective today, my interests in literature, music, travel and nature help me maintain a sense of perspective in life. I like to write and have had some articles published in Indian newspapers. I have organized and participated in a number of extra-curricular activities during my college days and have won university and national level prizes in debating, writing and quizzes. I also believe that each of us must give something back to society - to this end, I have worked on a voluntary basis for the Hunger Project for a year; as a teacher and counselor to physically and mentally handicapped children for three years; and as a reader to blind students. Today, I contribute to a local organization that focuses on the environment of my hometown, Allahabad.

I hope that the admissions committee finds my background and strengths commensurate with the requirements of XYZ's Ph.D. program in Business Administration."

http://www.statementofpurpose.com/essay_bm3.html

Website: Statement of purpose.com

4 - Sample Statement of Purpose – Electrical & Computer Engineering M.Sc. example: Tamir Suliman – Johns Hopkins University

Perhaps the most important influence that has shaped the person I am today is my upbringing in a traditional family-oriented Sudanese and Nubian culture. My family has been an important source of support in all of the decisions I have made, and my guiding principles which are good words, good deeds, and good thoughts. Not only do I try to do things for others, but I always push myself to be the best that I can be in all aspects of my life. I saw early the doors and opportunities that a good education can open up; thus, I particularly tried hard to do well in school. Another important experience that has had a large influence on me the past few years has been college. Going from high school to college was a significant change. College required a major overhaul of time-management techniques as the number of things to do mushroomed. College, also, is full of diversity. I have people of all backgrounds and abilities in my classes, and this experience has made me more tolerant of differences. In addition to that, in the college I found that I was studying something I enjoyed. I believe it is because I enjoy my life and my work that I have been successful. Spending hours in the laboratory is not something that I dread, but instead I take pride in my work and its successful completion. One example of this that is still fresh in my mind is the successful coding of machines state equations modeling matrix in MATLAB and later on undergraduate computer application class project and later on the design and the program of PLCs ladder diagrams for a part of petroleum- Control system on last year final project. All told, the project took over 150 hours of each of my team mate members. However, I did not look on it as a drain, but an experience for learning and a focus for my professional and technical development. When we completed the project, we felt the sense of worth and pride in completion of a task that was once above our level of knowledge. Pursuing a graduate degree in the field I have chosen also feels like a challenge, and I know that study will frustrate me at times. However, I feel that my commitment to learning will not be swayed. I feel confident in my ability to be creative in my perspective, and to persevere. My ultimate goal is to be an innovator in the field I have chosen to study. Professionalism and creativity are my most valued strengths. As a Johns Hopkins University student, I would commit all that I have to offer to my study. I intend to pursue research in Big Data Security Systems which was something I worked on through the last ten years of my career in Cyber Security with. As a cyber

security engineer, I had already conducted some research on Big Data and Cyber Security Systems design for power systems electric grid applications, resulting in great saving for our organization that I hope I can take way further with my graduate study. Building on my past success and experience in cyber security and data; I hope to advance my understanding through research at the graduate level, it is my hope to become familiar with, or innovate the design of big data and security Systems in hopes of creating a reliable and practical Big data based security systems interface for use in Power or Control Systems industry.

From my own research into Johns Hopkins University, I feel confident in my knowledge of the Engineering program and its potential to teach me, and after talking with your graduate faculty adviser, I'm even more convinced that Johns Hopkins computer engineering program is right for me.

Finally, my intent to pursue graduate study is laid plain. In particular, my M.Sc. research would be a system driven research and it will be about enabling a general platform for analyzing electric or industrial grid systems threats data. As it's known that contextual Analytics of various threat data provides a deeper understanding of a threat and enables identification of unknown threat vectors. Through the use of big data analytics and deep learning data correlation across different threat types, a better understanding of where, how and to what level of danger a malicious actor poses to an organization. It also provides measures to prevent future threats and available sustainable solution.

From my previous experiences and current interests, I see myself doing interdisciplinary research with researchers from Electrical Engineering, Information Security and Computational informatics in big data analysis for threats data. My research approach is to identify the most general version of a new problem possible, and search for innovative solutions that are elegant, widely applicable and highly implementable in regards to employing security tools integrated with big data to achieve that goal.

I am committed to my goal in pursuing this degree, and I have closely analyzed myself to determine the reasons for my previous successes and my goals for the future. I have found that I do and have always enjoyed computer technologies and engineering, and that I have a strong desire to pursue my study further. I am prepared to commit myself to that study, and achieve what I have set out to do.



Fully Funded Scholars

Merit scholarship (Sweden)

Description	 The Swedish Institute Study Scholarship provides a number of full scholarships for master's programs in Sweden. The program is open to students who are citizens of countries on the OECD/DAC list. The program offers a unique opportunity for future leaders to develop professionally and academically, to experience Swedish society and culture and to build a long-lasting relationship with Sweden and each other. Scholarship duration up to 2 years. It's for programs start in autumn semester only Application starts in October till January every year.
Eligibilities	 Applicants must be from an eligible country Have at least 3,000 hours of experience from full-time/part-time employment, voluntary work, paid/unpaid internship, and/or position of trust. Applicants must display academic qualifications and leadership experience. In addition, applicants should show an ambition to make a difference by working with issues which contribute to a just and sustainable development in their country, in a long term perspective.
Docs	(English test/(s)): * Note that English language proficiency certificate (IELTS/British council) is one of the requirements by the embassy to get the visa, and not necessarily required by the university for the application.
Helpful links	 Video(s) explaining the application process for this scholarship: <u>Link</u> Social media group for Sudanese for this scholarship: <u>Facebook group</u> Scholarship holders emails: <u>Muhammad Alfateh</u>, <u>Alaa Altayeb</u>, and <u>Hamid Mohammed</u>
Official website	Link

Merit scholarship (Germany) - DAAD

Description	 With its development-oriented postgraduate study programs (MSc and PhD), the DAAD offers foreign graduates from development and newly industrialized countries from all disciplines and with at least two years' professional experience the chance to take a postgraduate or Master's degree at a state or state-recognized German university, and in exceptional cases to take a doctoral degree, and to obtain a university qualification (Master's/PhD) in Germany. Number of Awards for Sudanese is not specified. Scholarship value: Depending on academic level, monthly payments of 850 euros for graduates or 1,200 euros for doctoral candidates
Eligibilities	 Candidates from eligible country Candidates fulfil the necessary academic requirements and can be expected to successfully complete a study program in Germany (above-average result for first academic exam – top performance third, language skills) Candidates have a Bachelor degree (usually a four-year course) in an appropriate subject Candidates have at least two years' professional experience Candidates can prove their motivation is development-related and be expected to take on social responsibility and initiate and support processes of change in their personal and professional environment after their training/scholarship
Docs	English tests: TOEFL or IELTS or German language (for programs taught in German).
Helpful links	 Facebook group for Sudanese accepted in this scholarship: <u>Link</u> Scholarship holders emails: <u>Ahmed Abdallah Jadallah Alawad</u>, <u>Sawsan</u>
Official website	Link

Merit scholarship (Turkey)

Description	The Turkish government scholarship program YTB started in 2005 especially after the new policy towards Africa. <u>It provides</u> <u>opportunities for young in all levels of education starting with</u> <u>airfares, tuition fees, accommodation and monthly expenses which</u> <u>are 700, 950,1400 Turkish liras for bachelor, masters, and PhD</u> <u>students respectively.</u>
	 Number of Awards for Sudanese: 50 to 100 candidates yearly (MSc and PhD). Scholarship includes a one-year Turkish Language Course Scholarship Deadline(s): Start January (annual) – end in March.
Eligibilities	 Minimum Academic Criteria: for Bachelor's applicants: 70%, for Master's and Doctorate degree applicants: 75%, and for Health Science (Medicine, Dentistry and Pharmacy) applicants: 90%
Helpful links	 Facebook group for Sudanese accepted in this scholarship: <u>Link</u> Accepted Sudanese in the scholarship: <u>Omran</u>, <u>Wafi</u> <u>Khamis Ali Abdalla</u>, <u>Alrayah Abu Alkeram Ali Altai</u>, <u>Israa</u> <u>Abdulrahman</u>, <u>Azraa eltayeb</u>
Official website	Link

Merit scholarship (Republic of South Korea)

Description	 The Korean Government Scholarship Program is offered to students from all over the globe on merit to promote culture and the relations between Korea and other countries. It's a full scholarship of Bachelor's, Master's and PhD for 5,3,4 years respectively including one year of Korean Language course. Number of Awards for Sudanese is 4 Scholarship duration: Bachelor's 5 years, Master's 3 years and 4 years for Ph.D. Different fields: Humanities and Social Sciences, Natural Sciences and Technology, Arts and Physical Education, It, management, Engineering Scholarship Deadline(s): *Undergraduate: Early September - Late October (Annually) *Graduate: Early February - Late March.
Eligibilities	 80% or 2.64/4.00 GPA (at least) of the previous academic qualification. Applicant age should be less than 40 years old (for post graduate), 25 years old (for undergraduate) at the year of application. Applicants should be physically and mentally fit to study in Korea.
Docs	 Language proficiency tests are <u>not required</u> but they give preference if available. Recommendation from a previous professor or employer.
Helpful links	 Facebook group for Sudanese accepted in this scholarship: <u>Link</u> Sudanese scholarship holders emails: <u>Fathi Karim</u>, <u>Diaelhag</u> <u>Aisa Hamid khalifa</u>
Official website	Link

Merit scholarship (India)

Description	 India is known as an education hub attracting international students from all over the world. Indian Council for Cultural Relations with a mandate of administering scholarship programs of Government of India annually awards about 3940 scholarships under 26 different schemes to foreign students from about 140 counties. Amongst these 23 schemes, six are funded by ICCR from its own grant and others are administered on behalf of MEA. Number of Awards for Sudanese is Less than 35 students per year. Scholarship duration: Bachelor from 3 to 4 years, master 2 years, PhD 5 years.
Docs	 University certificate (above 70% for bachelor), passport, recommendation letter, medical report, passport photo. English test/(s): Without language tests, only there is an English exam with a conversation at the Embassy.
Helpful links	 Video(s) explaining the application process for this scholarship: <u>Link</u> Accepted Sudanese in this scholarship: <u>Abdalbagi Ali</u> <u>Ibrahim</u>, <u>Ismail Mohammed Omer Younnis</u>
Official website	Link

Merit scholarship Qatar (Hamad Bin Khalifa University)

Description	 Hamad Bin Khalifa University College of Science and Engineering scholarship is given to selected students admitted to the College, based on merit. The scholarship is highly competitive. It is also a comprehensive scholarship covering almost all the expenses of an international student. The scholarship is granted automatically to admit students without the need for a separate application. Number of Awards for Sudanese is: Not specified. Any Sudanese applicant to the University is eligible to receive the scholarship. Scholarship value: Varies depending on the program, study level (MSc or PhD), and college. Scholarship duration: Entire study period Scholarship Deadline(s): February of each year
Docs	Scholarship requirements (English test/(s)): Varies depending on the program and the college.
Helpful links	 Facebook group for this scholarship: <u>Link</u>
	 scholarship holder LinkedIn: <u>Mohamed Alhaj</u>
Official website	Link

Doha Institute's scholarship

Description	 Doha Institute's scholarship started back in 2015. It offers a wide variety of scholarships annually to attract academically qualified students from within and outside the State of Qatar. The scholarships vary, some awarded on the basis of merit and academic competition, while others are based on financial need. Scholarship for MSc degree. Scholarship Deadline(s): The application usually starts in November every year until February.
Docs	 Copy of official identification (Passport for International students - Qatari ID for citizens and residents of Qatar). A bachelor's degree certified by official authorities. Undergraduate transcripts certified by official authorities including all transferred courses if any. Senior year students submit their latest transcripts. A minimum of TWO references from academics familiar with the applicant's work requested via the online application form. An additional letter of recommendation may be submitted by a supervisor from previous employment. Meet one of the English requirements: If applicable, submit proof that your language of instruction in your previous academic program was English. Graduation requires an Academic IELTS score of 6.5 or TOEFL iBt score of 79. Admitted students with an IELTS score of 5.5 or 6 are required to satisfy the graduation requirement during their study at the Institute. The student is exempted if he or she submits the test again during the study and achieves the score required for graduation. All official transcripts should be translated in Arabic or English. A personal statement Academic Essay. Updated curriculum vitae (CV).
Helpful links	 Facebook group for this scholarship: <u>Link</u> Sudanese scholarship holders emails: <u>Omran Musa</u>
Official website	Apply

Merit scholarship (Spain)

Description	 The PhD and postdoctoral research positions in Spain are considered as professional contract-based positions receiving funding from different sources; the main one is the European Research Council ERC together with the national Spanish research council at a lower level together with some other funding agencies. Scholarship for PhD degree and postdoctoral research positions. Scholarship duration: 3 years The application period is not specified for ERC projects, it's usually decided by the group leaders. However similar PhD grants offered by the national research council in Spain CSIC have the application open in March-April every year. Fields: Physics of Nano materials and advanced structures, Chemistry, Biophysics, Materials science. (Search for other fields)
Eligibilities	Academic merit and relevance Fluency in English language (English tests are not mandatory).
Docs	
Helpful links	Sudanese scholarship holders emails: Mohammed Sabri
Official website	Website/Links for application <u>https://euraxess.ec.europa.eu/</u> <u>http://cfm.ehu.es/</u> <u>https://www.nanogune.eu/careers</u> <u>https://www.cicbiomagune.es/careers</u> <u>http://dipc.ehu.es/join_us.php</u>

Merit scholarship (Nigeria)

Description	 The Pan African University is an initiative of the Heads of State and Government of the African Union. It is a Premier continental university network whose mission is to provide quality postgraduate education geared towards the achievement of a prosperous, integrated and peaceful Africa. Scholarship for MSc and PhD degree. Number of Awards for Sudanese is: 20 Scholarship duration: Start in January and end up to April Application starts late December and it ends late March every year.
Eligibilities	 For masters: undergraduate degree from a recognized university, with at least a second class upper division or its equivalent, in a relevant field. For PhD: A Master's degree in a relevant field from PAU or any internationally recognized university. A 3 to 4 page Research Concept Note (tentative title, research questions, objectives, significance of the research etc); Names of 3 Reference University Teachers (with email address and whatsapp number);(Mandatory); For masters: Maximum age of 30 years for male and 35 years for female applicants. For PhD: Maximum age of 35 years for male and 40 years for female applicants
Docs	 Certified copies of relevant certificates, transcripts (from university and high school), national I.D. card and passport personal details page. Recommendation letters from 2 Professors Clear colored passport size photograph (2cm x 2cm). A cover letter and a detailed CV are mandatory on the submission. No English test required
Helpful links	 Sudanese scholarship holders emails: <u>Mohammed</u> <u>Osman Saeed.</u>
Official website	Link

Government scholarship (United Kingdom)

1	
Description	Chevening is the UK government's international awards scheme aimed at developing global leaders since 1983. It is funded by the Foreign and Commonwealth Office (FCO) and partner organizations. Chevening offers two types of awards – Chevening Scholarships and Chevening Fellowships. The recipients of the award are personally selected by British Embassies and High Commissions throughout the world. The objective of Chevening is to support foreign policy priorities and achieve FCO objectives by creating lasting positive relationships with future leaders, influencers, and decision-makers.
Eligibilities	 Be a citizen of a Chevening-eligible country (Sudan is one of them) Return to your country of citizenship for a minimum of two years after your award has ended Have an undergraduate degree that will enable you to gain entry onto a postgraduate program at a UK university. This is typically equivalent to an upper second-class 2:1 honors degree in the UK. Have at least two years' work experience. Note that voluntary work is considered in this period. Apply to three different eligible UK university courses and have received an unconditional offer from one of these choices Meet the Chevening English language requirement. IELTS 6.5 minimum and 5.5 for each section.
Docs	IELTS 6.5 minimum and 5.5 for each section.
Helpful links	 Video(s) explaining the application process for this scholarship: <u>Link</u> Social media group for Sudanese for this scholarship: <u>Facebook group</u> Scholarship holders emails: <u>Sara Shamoun</u>
Official website	Link

PhD studentship (Norway)

Description	The scholarship is a part of NTNU digital economy project. The job
	was posted in jobbnorge.
	You can search for new PhD positions in different fields in Norway
	using Jobbnorge website:
	https://www.jobbnorge.no/search
	Scholarship for PhD degree.
	Number of Awards for Sudanese is not specified (the PhD is a
	job, so everyone can apply regardless of the race, religion or
	nationality)
	Scholarship value: 480K NOK per year
	 Scholarship duration: 3 to 4 years
Eligibilities	 Good record of publications and industry experience
Docs	IELTS, TOEFL
Helpful links	Scholarship holders emails: Ahmed Idris
Official website	Link

AIMS Scholarship (Tanzania)

	1
Description	 Aim scholarship is a scholarship for African students. The AIMS centers are located in 5 African countries: South Africa, Rwanda, Senegal, Ghana and Cameroon. It is fully funded, one year duration. It is a scholarship for a Master's degree. Number of Awards for Sudanese is about 4 for each center, making the total number around 20 Sudanese every year. Scholarship value: full scholarship covering living costs and tuition fees. Scholarship duration: Master 18 months PhD 36 months The application starts in December and the deadline is mid of March.
Eligibilities	 Bachelor certificate in any of the areas mentioned below: Mathematics, Statistics, Computer Sciences and Physics. High GPA is preferred.
Docs	 Applicants must hold or expect to obtain by the date of commencement of AIMS training a 4-year university degree in mathematics or any other science/engineering discipline with a significant mathematics component. Candidate records must demonstrate strong mathematics, leadership and community service skills.

	 Women are strongly encouraged to apply. Open to all African Countries
Helpful links	Scholarship holders emails: Marwa Zainelabdeen
Official website	<u>Link</u>

Australian government (Federal register of legislation)

Description	• The Research Training Program (RTP) scheme is administered
	by individual universities on behalf of the Department of
	Education. Applications for RTP Scholarships need to be made
	directly to participating universities.
	 Scholarship for Master and PhD degree.
	 Number of Awards for Sudanese is not specified
	Scholarship value: full Scholarship
	• Duration: A minimum of three years, up to a maximum of four
	years for PhD
	*Note: You can apply for these scholarships at any time of the year, as scholarships are awarded all year round.
Helpful links	Scholarship holders emails: Marwa Zainelabdeen
Official website	<u>Link</u>

Academic Scholarships for Sudanese (Indonesia)

Description	 The Indonesian scholarship is offered to potential students from developing countries to earn their Master Degree at one of 16 prominent universities in Indonesia. Scholarship for Bachelor and Master degree.
	 Number of Awards for Sudanese is Ten for Master and ten for Bachelor Scholarship value: Living Allowance, Research
	 Allowance, Books Allowance, Indonesian Language Course and Master Preparatory Program, Ticket Scholarship duration: 3 years for master Application starts January Deadline: April 12 each year Scholarship Field(s) of study: Humanities, Engineering, Science, Social science, Education
Eligibilities	 The maximum age to apply for the scholarship is 35 years old Applicant must hold a BSc degree (MSc degree holder is not eligible to apply) Applicant must have a TOEFL (or other certified English Proficiency) score of 500 or equivalent Applicants must complete the on-line application form Prior to the departure to Indonesia, the successful candidates must sign the Statement Letter and

	Scholarship Agreement prepared by the KNB Scholarship management
Docs	 Scholarship requirements (English test/(s)): English certificate but not (IELTS,TOEFL) Note: they use the Indonesian language for study.
Helpful links	Scholarship holders emails: <u>Alaeldin Mohammed Ahmed</u> <u>Musa</u>
Official website	https://knb.kemdikbud.go.id/

FUNCAMP (Postdoctoral Fellowship) (Brazil)

Description	• The main purpose of the CENTER FOR PETROLEUM
	STUDIES is to provide a link between UNICAMP and
	society, in the petroleum area, by offering support to
	courses, technological and scientific research projects
	and services. CEPETRO is subordinated to the GENERAL
	COORDINATION OFFICE of UNICAMP, and supervised
	by a scientific council constituted of directors of
	institutes and faculties and external members
	• Scholarship for Postdoctoral Fellowship.
	• Number of Awards for Sudanese is: one scholarship
	 Scholarship duration: Two years
Eligibilities	• Scholarship field of study: Petroleum Engineering
	PhD in engineering or mathematics
Docs	• IELTS
Helpful links	Scholarship holders emails: Husham Ali Elbaloula
Official website	<u>CEPETRO (unicamp.br)</u>

Part-time research positions (Qatar)

Description	 It's a part-time contract as a research or teaching
	assistant by enrolling as a full-time master's student
	(TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY AT QATAR)
	• Scholarship for MSc degree.
	 Number of Awards for Sudanese is not specified.
	• Scholarship value: Tuition + airfare + living stipend +
	housing + health insurance.
	 Scholarship duration: 2 years.
	• Scholarship Deadline: May, Deadline for fall semester
	& December for spring semester
Eligibilities	 Scholarship field of study: Petroleum Engineering
	 PhD in engineering or mathematics
Docs	• TOEFL but depends on verbal GRE if below 146)
Helpful links	 Scholarship holders' emails: <u>Reem</u>
Official website	<u>Admissions Login (tamu.edu)</u>
	Engineering Schools in Qatar - Engineering
	College Texas A&M University at Qatar
	(tamu.edu)

Note: This scholarship does not have a special application link or specific conditions and depends on the agreement between the student and the supervisor

Government Scholarship (MEXT Scholarship - Japan)

Description	 The Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology (MEXT) scholarship supports foreign students who study in higher education institutions, selected on the recommendation of Japanese Embassy/Consulate General, University, or Authority Open for Graduate schools and Colleges of Technology. There are various fields, so check the official website. The deadlines are usually in May, but check for the specific date. The application is via email this year (check their website for any updates), the pdf files shouldn't exceed 10 MB. The email: mofa.go.jp.contact@kt The title should be: MEXT Application Be careful that you should travel to Cairo, Egypt to take a paper exam/s.
Eligibilities	 Age requirements: 35 for research students and 25 for technology students.
Docs	 Medical certificate (download its format from the website). Recommendation letter/s (download its format from the website).
Official website	Embassy website

Merit Scholarship (Mandela Rhodes Scholarship - South Africa)

	
Description	 The Mandela Rhodes Scholarship is a unique opportunity for young leaders from anywhere on the African continent to further their education in South Africa. While completing postgraduate study in any field of your choice, their leadership development programme will empower you to solve some of Africa's most difficult challenges. You will begin a life-changing leadership journey, and find a community of people who share your passion for the positive transformation of Africa. The scholarship does not pay for your application fees for university, or for the accreditation of your existing degrees through SAQA, which may be an entry requirement to your course. Also do not provide financial support for visa applications. The scholarship is for postgraduate study (Honors and Masters degrees) in any field, with the exception of MBAs. The scholarship includes a compulsory Leadership Development Programme of either one year or two years depending on your course. The programme gives you access to a mentorship programme, and a community of young leaders from across the African continent.
Eligibilities	 English requirements vary depending on the program
Liigiointioo	 Age restrictions: between 19 and 29
	 Have an undergraduate degree with excellent academic results (above 70% or upper-second class Honours)
Docs	 Recommenders: they require three letters of recommendation, in English, as part of your application. Your recommenders must submit their letters through their application platform. Documentation: You will be required to upload certificates of completion for your degrees, transcripts of your academic results, and scans of your ID and passport documents. Your documents and transcripts must be provided in English. Essays: You will be asked to write two short essays, one on your personal journey, and one on a specific question relating to our principles. Application for university: You will be asked to fill in your proposed course of study on your application. They do not require proof that you have applied, but they recommend that you apply as soon as possible, and to more than one university.
Helpful links	 Facebook group: <u>link</u> YouTube video for more information: link
Official website	YouTube video for more information: <u>link</u> Link



Partially funded scholarships

Merit scholarship (Italy)

Description	• The scholarship provided by University of Calabria targets
	international (non-EU) students to study the bachelor's or
	master's degree (known in Italy as Laurea Magistrale).
	• Basically, Sudan is among the countries in which their
	students are exempted from the payment of the tuition
	fees regardless of the course. Concerning living expenses
	and the flights they should -in any case- be paid by the
	student. The scholarship covers the cost of accommodation
	and canteen for the duration of the program.
	• A stipend is given for financial assistance during the
	program. Right to access the funding through this
	scholarship is based on the academic merit and the financial
	need (measured by Family Income) before and during the
	program.
	• Language of instruction for the majority of the courses is
	Italian, however, for international students, the exams and
	the thesis can be done in English. University of Calabria
	offers a free Italian language and culture course for all
	International students before the beginning of each
	semester.
	• Some courses are taught in English such as (for the
	academic year 2020/2021):
	• Master degree courses in Finance and Insurance at
	the Department of Economics, Statistics and
	Finance.
	• Master degree course in Computer Science at the
	Department of Mathematics and Computer Sciences.
L	

	 Master degree courses in Computer Engineering for the Internet of Things at the Department of Informatic. Modeling Electronics and System Engineering. The scholarship includes all fields except medicine, medical laboratories, agricultural sciences, aerospace engineering and some other fields. Scholarship Deadline(s): The call normally opens from Jan/Feb to April/May every year Scholarship duration: 2 years for the MSc degree and 3 for the BSc degree.
Eligibilities	 Scholarship field of study: Petroleum Engineering PhD in engineering or mathematics
Docs	 High school certificate + Bachelor's degree certificate and transcripts + CV + passport + passport size photo + any supporting documents (e.g. Recommendation letters, English/Italian language certificate, relevant work experience, GRE, etc.). Attention: IELTS/Italian language certificates are both not mandatory for the application. However, the embassy of Italy in Khartoum commonly asks for one of them depending on the official language of instruction for the specific field of study.
Helpful links	Scholarship holders emails: • <u>Mohammed Sabri</u> • <u>Omer Alsaid</u>
Official website	 Portale dell'Università della Calabria - Università della Calabria (unical.it) Social media group for Sudanese for this scholarship: <u>Facebook group</u>

Merit scholarship (China)

Description	 In order to promote mutual understanding, cooperation
	and exchanges in various fields between China and
	other countries, the Chinese government has set up a
	series of scholarship programs to sponsor international
	students, teachers and scholars to study and conduct
	research in Chinese universities. China Scholarship
	Council (hereinafter referred to as CSC), entrusted
	by the Ministry of Education of the People's Republic of
	China (hereinafter referred to as MOE), is
	responsible for the enrollment and the administration of
	Chinese Government Scholarship programs. Now, 279
	designated Chinese universities offer a wide variety of
	academic programs in Science, Engineering,
	Agriculture, Medicine, Economics, Legal Studies,
	Management, Education, History, Literature,
	Philosophy, and Fine Arts for scholarship recipients at
	all levels.
	 Scholarship for BSc and PhD degree.
	 Number of Awards for Sudanese is not specified.
	Scholarship value:
	The scholarship covers:
	Tuition fee
	Health insurance
	Accommodation
	Living stipend
	 Scholarship requirements (English test/(s)): Few
	universities required ielts certificate while most of the
	universities ask for language proficiency certificate

	regardless of its type, few universities don't ask of any
	kind of language certificates
	 Scholarship Deadline(s): From January to April each
	year (each university has a different deadline but
	mostly is March 31)
Eligibilities	Application Form for Chinese Government Scholarship
	(in Chinese or English) + The application form of the
	concerned university
	Notarized highest diploma
	Academic transcripts
	A study plan or research proposal
	Two recommendation letters
	 Applicants for music studies are requested to submit a
	CD of the applicants' own works. Applicants for the fine
	arts programs must submit a CD of the applicants' own
	works (including two sketches, two color paintings and
	two other works)
	 A photocopy of the Foreigner Physical Examination
	Form.
	NOTES:
	1. Some universities required (non-criminal record and
	application fees)
	2. All the above-mentioned documents should be sent to the
	university
	(Only a few universities don't require hard copies).
Docs	• Few universities required ielts certificate while most of
	the universities ask for language proficiency certificate
	regardless of its type, few universities don't ask of any
	kind of language certificates
Helpful links	• Video(s) explaining the application process for this scholarship:

	 Link Social media group for Sudanese for this scholarship: <u>Facebook</u> group Scholarship holders emails: Reem Rashid Eltegani 		
	 Mohammed elhassan omer 		
	 Mohanned Khalid Mohammed 		
	 <u>Almahadi Noureldeen</u> 		
	 → Hani Alsir 		
	• Hassan Abakar Abdalla Mohamed		
	• Azzam Omer Alfarog Abdallah Mohamed		
	• <u>Omer</u>		
	 ○ Esraa Elhadi 		
Official website	• Login 来华留学管理信息系统 (csc.edu.cn)		

Albukhary International University - Malaysia Scholarships

Description	Overview
	 Albukhary International University Malaysia Scholarships 2024 is open for International Students. The scholarship allows Masters, Undergraduate, Bachelor level program(s) in the field of All Subjects taught at Albukhary International University. The deadline of the scholarship is. This initiative is set to illuminate the path for countless students who dream of studying abroad but are hindered by financial constraints. Scholarship Benefits: Tuition fees, on-campus dormitory accommodation, and a monthly stipend. Located outside the costly city center of Kuala Lumpur, the university enables students to live comfortably, with some even managing to save money to support their families back home.
Eligibilities	 Applicants must be between 18 to 22 years of age. Must have successfully completed at least the 10th grade. Must come from a household with a total income of less than USD 300 per month. Applicants must be unmarried/single.
Docs	 High school transcript Mother and father identification card Applicant's passport

	 Income Slip IELTS 'Not Mandatory, the university offer student an intensive IELTS preparation Course' 		
Helpful links	Scholarship holders emails: Shahd Albasim, Sara Omer		
Official website	 <u>Online Application (aiu.edu.my)</u> <u>Admission and Application - Albukhary International</u> <u>University (aiu.edu.my)</u> <u>Home - Albukhary International University (aiu.edu.my)</u> 		

WAAW Foundation Undergraduate Scholarship

Description	 WAAW Foundation is a U.Sbased non-profit organization established in various African countries whose mission is to increase the pipeline of African girls entering Science and Technology, and related fields and ensure they are engaged in technology, innovation, and entrepreneurship to benefit Africa. With this mission, WAAW Foundation offers scholarships, mentorships, training, and other impact programs for both students and teachers in STEM to equip them with the right tools to succeed. WAAW Foundation has awarded more than 91 African girls pursuing STEM studies across various public institutions of higher learning and remains committed to supporting even more young women in their academic pursuits. Benefits: Scholarship recipients receive an award of \$500 equivalent in their country's local currency for the 2024 academic year. Scholars also gain access to a mentorship program to guide and support their academic and professional journey, and an opportunity to connect with like-minded peers, professionals, and industry leaders.
Eligibilities	1. Be Female students of African origin living in Africa.

	2. Have gained admission to a University or college
	program in a STEM or STEM-related field.
	3. Be in their second year (for a four-year course) or third
	year (for a five-year course)
	4. Must demonstrate excellent academic record and
	financial need. Special consideration is given to
	underprivileged students such as orphans, or girls
	impacted by HIV.
	5. Eligible courses are:
	All fields of Engineering
	All computer science
	 Science & Math related fields; Industrial chemistry,
	environmental sciences, Agriculture, Geography,
	zoology, and Statistics, etc
	 Medical courses; Pharmacy / BioMedical,
	Biochemistry, (NO CORE MEDICAL COURSE like
	Medicine and Surgery, Nursing, Optometry, etc.)
Docs	If you are shortlisted;
	 You are required to submit 2 reference letters from
	your Head of Department and Lecturer academic
	mentors.
	 You are required to submit recent academic
	transcripts.
Helpful links	Scholarship holders' emails: Shahd Albasim
Official website	• 2023/2024 WAAW Foundation Undergraduate Scholarship
	WAAW Foundation - WAAW Foundation

Merit scholarship (HSE University - Russia)

Description	 The Higher School of Economics (HSE University) is one of the largest and at the same time youngest universities in Russia. Across four campuses in Moscow, Saint Petersburg, Nizhny Novgorod, and Perm, over 40,000 students study, and more than 3,500 of those are foreigners. The scholarship covers the tuition fees only. Master and PhD There are various fields, so check their website. Deadlines: usually opens in September to December (check their website for specific dates) 		
Eligibilities	 University degree for Master English requirements are different for each program Recorded work experience 		
Helpful links	Email of a scholarship holder: Yassir Ali Osmam Mohammed		
Official website	Link https://admissions.hse.ru/en/globaluni/		

Scholarships summary

No	Scholarship type	Field of study	Country	Website/Links
1	Merit scholarship (Sweden)	No specific filed	Sweden	<u>https://eng.si.se/areas-of-operation/scholarships-and-grants/the-swedish-institute-study-scholarships/siss-application-procedure-and-key-dates/</u>
2	Merit scholarship (Germany)	All fields	Germany	https://www2.daad.de/deutschla nd/stipendium/datenbank/en/21 148-scholarship- database/?detail=50076777
3	Merit scholarship (Turkey)	All fields	Turkey	https://www.turkiyeburslari.gov.t r/
6	Merit scholarship (Republic of South Korea)	Different fields	South Korea	https://www.studyinkorea.go.kr/ en/sub/gks/selectBoardList.do?bb sld=BBSMSTR_00000000461
5	Type 1/ Merit scholarship (India)	All fields	India	<u>Government of India</u>

6	Hamad Bin Khalifa University College of Science and Engineering scholarship	MSc & PhD in Science and Engineerin g fields	Qatar	https://www.hbku.edu.qa/en/cse
7	Doha Institute scholarship (Qatar)	different fields	Qatar	https://www.dohainstitute.edu.q a/EN/Prospective Students/Admi ssions/Pages/Apply.aspx
8	Merit scholarship (Spain)	Physics of Nano materials and advanced structures	Spain	https://euraxess.ec.europa.eu/ http://cfm.ehu.es/
9	Merit scholarship (Nigeria)	different fields	Nigeria	https://www.au- pau.org/submission/
10	Governmen t scholarship (United Kingdom)	different fields	United Kingdom	http://www.chevening.org/apply
11	PhD studentship (Norway)	informatio n systems and digitization	Norway	https://www.jobbnorge.no/searc h?term=PhD&OrderBy=Published &Period=All#1
12	AIMS Scholarship (Tanzania)	Mathemat ics, Statistics, Computer Sciences and Physics.	Tanzania	https://www.nexteinstein.org/ap ply/aims-structured-masters- degree-application/

13	Australian government (Federal register of legislation)	Education	Australia	https://www.education.gov.au/re search-training- program?fbclid=IwAR01INZzUCrw 99ZMqm4ebRzPzUBWQdWXSjZ- 9OdxZS9mWBONUEsKxEQIG4Y
14	Scholarships for Sudanese (Indonesia)	Humanitie s, Engineerin g, Science, Social science, Education	Indonesia	<u>http://www.knb.ristekdikti.go.id/</u> aG9tZWRIcGFu
15	FUNCAMP (Brazil)	Petroleum Engineerin g	Brazil	Www.cepetro.unicamp.br
16	Part-time research positions	Chemical Engineerin g	Qatar	https://www.qatar.tamu.edu/pro grams/graduate-studies
17	Governmen t Scholarship (MEXT - Japan)	All fields	Japan	https://www.sdn.emb- japan.go.jp/itpr_en/culture_educ ation.html?fbclid=IwAR1_u0W7W 72n3q7z-y0lG678- ku4ncQ1smaKCEOEN7AeGSrLZL- HGSdIID4
18	Merit Scholarship (Mandela Rhodes)	All fields except MBAs	South Africa	https://www.mandelarhodes.org/ scholarship/apply/#could-you

19	Merit scholarship (Italy)	All fields except medicine, medical laboratorie s, agricultura l sciences, aerospace engineerin	Italy	www.unicaladmission.it
20	Merit scholarship (China)	g. All fields	China	http://studyinchina.csc.edu.cn/#/login/
21	Merit scholarship (Albukhary Internationa I University)	All AIU fields	Malaysia	https://aiu.edu.my/
22	WAAW Foundation Undergradu ate Scholarship	STEM Fields	Online	https://waawfoundation.org/
23	Merit scholarship (HSE University)	Various fields	Russia	https://admissions.hse.ru/en/glob aluni/

عناوين الملفات الإرشادية السابقة لمجموعة الباحثين السودانيين

1- الدليل الإرشادي لطلاب وطالبات البكالوريوس والدراسات العليا في السودان https://drive.google.com/open?id=15lArQcR7iLVJ9d1ZCrtC2pMm t 0gpdz&f bclid=IwAR1jhOv1lKJyrext9HY8difl6RDPWBFmlSkV1N6cO h7lHnAhG04jG6jH dw

2- المرشد حول امتحان الآيلتس

https://drive.google.com/open?id=1LDesyrOGg-PTQDLI6xYKmYMNP02vU5s4&fbclid=IwAR1qYs0rTL2vM5kkxBdIa2PgfuUcYh6 ZGXLKISb6MVxoM72ycTSAgn_8cuY

3- الدليل الإرشادي للثائر السوداني

https://drive.google.com/open?id=12MmldH-QsLiZ48pc9UNO48iKaOF7EP64&fbclid=IwAR0IAHEmvR82xTlth3Jbf-7BkBZwBNj_p87XhiiAHU_6GZ5sXQKpOjp8fL8

4- المرشد إلى المنح الدراسية النسخة الأولى

https://figshare.com/articles/book/Sudanese_Researchers_Scholarships_Gui de/12158775?ref=sudaneseresearchers.org استبيان حول المرشد إلى المنح الدراسية

حرصاً منا إدارة الباحثين السودانيين على جودة المرشد إلى المنح الدراسية نتطلع لأخذ آرائكم و نرجو منكم شاكرين التكرم بإبداء الآراء من خلال الرابط :

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSebkKBGAw7WHI1HjZ3nQn-ARKNMKyU3gsPmTjHpEXIPzjmcVA/viewform?usp=sf_link تمت بحمدالله النسخة الثانية من المرشد إلى المنح الأكاديمية التابع لمؤسسة الباحثين السودانيين. إذا كان لديكم أي سؤال أو استفسار، يرجى مراسلة بريد المجموعة: sudan.researcher@gmail.com

صفحة المرشد على الفيس بوك: اضغط هنا

عنوان مجموعة الباحثين السودانيين على الفيس بوك: اضغط هنا

/English Website: https://sudaneseresearchers.org



SUDANESE RESEARCHERS FOUNDATION

© حقوق الطبع محفوظة لمؤسسة الباحثين السودانيين